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Lansing, Michigan

Thursday, January 26, 2023 - 9:31 a.m.

MR. FALAHEE: So I'm sorry to stop the discussions
in the audience. 1It's nice to see so many friendly faces,
familiar faces. My name is James -- if anybody calls me
James, I know it's a sales call -- the nickname is Chip
Falahee. 1It's my pleasure to be the chairman once again of
the Commission for the, I don't know, fourth, fifth, sixth
time, I'm not sure. Before we call the meeting to order, I
want to -- I want to thank Dr. McKenzie to my left. Our
cards still say that I'm the vice chair and she's the chair,
but we're not going to take a Sharpie and correct it. But I
want to thank her for her service as chair. It's -- I know
from experience it's not easy being chair and taking all the
phone calls and the e-mails, so I want to thank her
personally. Thank you, Amy, for that. Appreciate it.

DR. MCKENZIE: Thanks, Chip.

MR. FALAHEE: So let's call this meeting to order.
The first item on the agenda is the review of the agenda.
We've got the packet, the agenda in front of us. For those
in the audience, the packet this time was 224 pages and it
was a friendly slog through all of that documentation, so --
and I can guarantee you we've gone through it. So the first
item is the review of the agenda. 1I'd like to make one

potential change and if it's okay with the Commission to
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approve that change? We have one witness today is a
physician from the University of Michigan and he has time
commitments back in Ann Arbor. So I said to Steve Szelag
this morning that I'd be fine with it and I spoke with the
Department yesterday to take that physician out of order to
present on something to do related to MRT having to do with
proton beam. So we'll take that witness and that witness
only out of order once we finish with the review of the
minutes, then we'll go bak to the regular agenda. We'll
cover MRT where it is right now in the agenda which is
agenda item eight. So that would be the one change I would
make to the agenda. With that, is there a motion to approve
the revised agenda as I just described it?

DR. MACALLISTER: Commissioner Macallister. So
moved.

DR. MCKENZIE: Commissioner McKenzie. Second.

MR. FALAHEE: Okay. Motion made and seconded to
approve the revised agenda. All in favor say "aye."

ALL: Aye.

MR. FALAHEE: Great. Any opposed? Okay. Thank
you.

(Whereupon motion passed at 9:33 a.m.)

MR. FALAHEE: And as a side note we've all got
microphones in front of us so we can all hear each other and

hopefully, if not always, you might want to hear what we're
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saying

as well. So just a couple comments. First let's do

declaration of conflicts of interest. Let me get that out

of the way. Does anyone have on the Commission a conflict

of interest they wish to declare given the agenda in front

of us today? Hearing none, we'll move on. Review of
minutes. We last met on December 8. The minutes are in the
packet. Any comments? Otherwise, I'd entertain a motion to
accept the minutes as presented.

DR. MCKENZIE: Commissioner McKenzie. Motion to
accept the minutes.

DR. KONDUR: Second to accept. Commissioner
Kondur.

MR. FALAHEE: Great. Motion made, seconded to
accept the minutes as presented. All in favor say "aye."

ALL: Aye.

MR. FALAHEE: Opposed? Great.

(Whereupon motion passed at 9:34 a.m.)

MR. FALAHEE: Just some housekeeping items before
we go into our first witness/commenter. As you all know and

for any new in the audience, if you're coming up to testify

at the podium, the witnesses are subject to three minutes

time limit and after three minutes a little bell will go off

and I'll get a high sign and we'll ask you to summarize and

close your comments up. We do that out of respect for all

the witnesses, especially today. I know we've got a lot of
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blue cards being submitted so we do that out of respect for
everyone and we treat every witness the same. We'wve had
members of the legislature here, three minutes. So that's
how we approach it. Also, sometimes when we have multiple
blue cards in, some of those people just want to say the
same thing that somebody else just said. It's not a number
of witnesses that help the Commission decide whether to say
yea or nay or agree to something. So if your purpose of
getting up is Jjust say what she said or he said I agree
with, you don't need to do that. Secondly, or thirdly, when
I've been chairman before -- and I know I speak on behalf of
the Commissioners -- as I said, we've got a very extensive
packet. We do that every time. And we frown on last minute
additions to that packet, last minute handouts, e-mails the
night before. That comes in too late and doesn't give us
the time to digest it, understand it, talk to the Department
about it. And if you've got something that you want to say,
you've got the chance to come to the podium during the
meeting and speak for three minutes. So just sensitivity on
behalf of the Commission to everyone about that.

Just to tee up today's meeting. This is a -- we
call it a special meeting because meetings every January,
they're a little bit different. I look at it more of sort
of the CON strategic planning meeting. As we all know, the

CON standards are up for review every three years. This is
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the meeting where we consider those that are up for review
in this calendar year. And what we do every October before
that is we send out request for public comments. Dear
public, here are the standards that are coming up for
review. What comments do you have about them, good, bad,
indifferent? What should we as the Commission with the
Department look at? $So that's where that starts and that's
where it culminates here with suggestions for the Department
and for the Commission to look at certain standards,
consider changes to the standards, consider adding new
things to the standards and that's all well and good to keep
the standards current and reflective of what's going on
around us. And as we all know, health care is changing
rapidly so it's good to keep the standards as current as
possible based on reliable data and what happens as a result
of that is that the Department works with the Commission to
say here's what we think needs to be done. The Commission
then hears from witnesses and says, okay, here's what the
Commission wants to do and the result of that is that either
we can instruct the Department to do nothing, we can
instruct the Department to come up with some technical
wording changes, we can agree on a workgroup to be created
to look at an issue or issues, or we can agree on a SAC.

The SAC, Standards Advisory Committee, that's a more formal

body than the workgroup. SACs are subject to the Open
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Meetings Act like we are so you've got to be in person. You
can't be Zooming. Workgroups are not subject to the Open
Meetings Act. So that's what we're going to be talking
about today with the various issues we've got on our agenda;
do we appoint a SAC, a workgroup, technical workgroup,
whatever. So that's -- I just want to tee that up so
everybody understands what we're talking about here. Any
questions amongst the commissioners or comments? Okay.

If not, then I'll turn to our first out of order
witness from the University of Michigan. So and "out of
order" just means he's taking -- being taken out of order
not that he himself is out of order.

MR. WIRTH: And I do want to mention real quick
just two announcements real fast. We did find an orange
bank card. If anyone's missing a debit card, let me know
and we can make sure that we get that back to the owner.

MR. FALAHEE: Oh, we found it. Hang on. The
owner has --

MR. WIRTH: All right. And secondly, if you are
going to submit a blue card while the meeting is going on,
please pass that either to Marcus Connolly or Kate Tosto.
All right. And so now we have Dr. Daniel Chang from U of M.

DANIEL CHANG, M.D.
DR. DANIEL CHANG: Thank you, everyone. Thank you

for to the Commission for allowing me to speak here and for

10
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going out of order to accommodate my schedule.

I recently became the chair of the University of
Michigan, Department of Radiation Oncology. I'm here this
morning to request that the Commission reevaluate the
Certificate of Need standards governing proton radiotherapy.
Radiation is one of three pillars of cancer therapy
alongside surgery and chemotherapy. External beam radiation
with high energy photons is what the vast majority of
radiation patients receive. Proton therapy on the other
hand is a very —-- is very different photons in how it
penetrates and interacts with tissue. Photons deposit
energy from the moment they enter the body to the moment
they leave, thereby causing damage to healthy tissue and
normal tissue, similar to how you might think about how a
bullet enters a body that causes damage at the moment it
enters to the moment it exits. Protons on the other hand
could be more likened to a very precise mini grenade in that
it can deposit the vast majority of its energy at a very
precise and specified depth, then stops with very little
entrance and no exit dose damage.

For about two decades, the US only had two proton
facilities that were treating patients and this was
primarily because of two factors. One is that proton
therapies were very expensive, easily in the 150,- to $250

million range to build a center. And number two, the
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clinical evidence for proton therapy was lacking. In the
last 15 years or so there's been an explosion in proton
therapy centers in the US and around the world. And there
was a healthy and appropriate degree of skepticism that
adopting protons was premature, not evidence-based, and
likely maybe focused or more driven by some financial
reasons. As such, the public perception of protons was
deeply rooted in the skepticism and I would probably say
that some current CON standards that states have used and
adopted have been probably strict for a good reason.
However, more recently the proton industry has
committed more resources to reduce the cost of proton

therapy. Whereas before the only option was these very

large four to five room centers built from scratch at a nine

figure price tag, single room proton therapy solutions have
become available and now there's technology that was
recently announced that could fit in a current proton
therapy -- sorry, could fit proton therapy into a current

photon therapy vault meaning that you don't have to build

new centers and you could probably create these at about ten

percent or so of the cost of one of those large proton

therapy behemoths from the past.

At the same time, we've gained more experience and

more importantly more data to support proton therapy and how

it improves toxicity and reduces side effects. In just the

12
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last two years alone, there have been two published
randomized trials showing protons to be better than photon
therapy so the data is now finally catching up and we have
every reason to believe that this trend will continue.

We believe proton therapy is critically important
as a treatment option to offer residents of Michigan.
Patients that stand to benefit the most are children because
they can be spared the serious and sometimes horrifying
long-term risks of radiation including growth,
abnormalities, and second cancers that result from
radiation. Childhood cancers thankfully are very curable
with radiation but can be heartbreaking --

MR. WIRTH: That's three minutes.

DR. DANIEL CHANG: Three minutes? All right.
Okay.

MR. WIRTH: Sorry.

DR. DANIEL CHANG: All I'll say is that right now
we believe that the University of Michigan is in a good
position to be able to offer protons because of our
integration with a full service children's hospital and we
believe that now is a critical time to offer that because
many of these children are being sent out of state which can
be very difficult for families to able to cope with. So
with that, I'll close.

MR. FALAHEE: Thank you very much. Any questions?
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So I have one question. This is Commissioner Falahee. So
your recommendation is that when we consider the MRT agenda
items or charges, if you will, to consider adding to those
charges the issue of proton beam and whether we should look
at amending the standards in Michigan? Is that what I take
it or --

DR. DANIEL CHANG: Yeah. So, yeah, our
recommendation is that we review those standards because
right now we find them to be overly strict and difficult.
We believe -- so I'm relatively new to Michigan. My
understanding, though, is that from past history of attempts
to try to bring protons there was requirements of having to
have certain centers that had a certain number of threshold
of visits and then needs for consortiums and those types of
things whereas perhaps it may be -- it may be worthwhile to
reconsider whether those are necessary given that the
University of Michigan itself through its own network does
have a very large number of visits that touches a very broad
area of geographic footprint of the state of Michigan. But
I think also just the fact that financially the barriers
have come down dramatically and there's clear need because
right now patients are being sent out of state to other
places in order to get the therapy.

MR. FALAHEE: Okay. Thank you.

MS. GUIDO-ALLEN: I do have one. Commissioner
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Guido-Allen. So the Commission, the CON also has
limitations on bone marrow which Michigan is one of the
sites that allows it. How is your request to open up the
CON for proton different than the requests that have been
made in the past around bone marrow? I understand you're

new to Michigan.

DR. DANIEL CHANG: Yeah. Well, I guess I -- 1
guess what I would say is that it's a -- this particular --
I'm not a -—— I'm not a bone marrow expert. So what I can

say about protons is that I think the landscape has changed
pretty dramatically over the last three to four to five
years depending how far you want to go back. But I think
that right now there seems to be this kind of overall sort
of momentum that -- driven mostly by data now that we have
prospective, randomized face-free data which is something
that was lacking up until about two years ago. I think that
is probably the biggest thing that we want to be able to
stand on to say that this clearly shows benefit to the
patients that we can treat. I don't exactly know the
interplay between how bone marrow and proton therapy may
interact with each other, but for us because we take care of
children and -- through the Mott's Children Hospital, there
is going to be -- that is where, you know, the most complex
cases that probably would benefit the most from proton

therapy come.

15
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MR. FALAHEE: Other questions? Thank you very
much. Welcome to Michigan. Welcome to the joy of CON.
With that, we'll go back to the Roman numeral agenda in
front of us. And, Kenny, before we talk about and get
public comment on the psych beds and services, do you or
Kate or Marcus want to say anything, summarize what's going
on, where we've been?

MR. WIRTH: Yeah. I do wish to summarize, and
then we do have a number of public comments and I'm sure
that they will fill in any gaps that I leave.

So if you all recall at the December 8th, 2022
meeting of the CON Commission, the Commission voted to
bifurcate the definition for medical psychiatric unit and
charged the Department with developing language regarding
acute care settings with external stakeholders for you at
the January 26 meeting and to then charge an informal
workgroup with creating the definition for medical
psychiatric in a freestanding setting.

So as a reminder, the issue that we're facing
right now is that CON has approved some modifications for
medical psychiatric units within freestanding settings,
however, Licensing and Regulatory Affairs will only license
a med psych unit within an acute care setting. So my
understanding is it boils down to a conflict between CON

review standards and LARA statute. So we need to figure out

16
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how to make it so it'll work in a freestanding.

So the psych beds and services informal workgroup
focused on freestanding settings met on January 19th and is
requesting that the Commission provide some more guidance on
the assigned charge. The workgroup would like to know if
they are strictly limited to Section 1.4 of the psych beds
and services addendum, or if they are able to create a new
definition within Section 1 for a freestanding medical
psychiatric unit. The previous charge was very narrow in
scope and I think that kind of threw a little bit of a
wrench into the works. Additionally, the workgroup would
appreciate clarification from the Commission on the intended
use of the medical psychiatric unit beds when the med psych
units were created within the review standards as a special
pool. Sometime in 2015 or 2016 I think those were added.
Secondly, the Department is recommending that the Commission
hold a vote today to add to the informal workgroup's charge
to amend the medical psychiatric unit definition to prevent
med psych units in acute care settings as well as in
freestanding settings so the workgroup can tackle both,
essentially undo the bifurcation and have the workgroup look
at both things. And that's what I have on that, so --

MR. FALAHEE: Before we open it up for public
comment, the reason I wanted Kenny to summarize it is

because there have been some changes since the workgroup
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started to dig into this and now we see the potential
conflict between LARA and MDHHS so we're learning more. And
as we're learn more, the beauty of a flexible charge, if you
will, is we can add charges to a workgroup or a SAC. There

are requirements on how to do that, but that's the beauty of

it. So that's what -- anybody have any questions before we
open it up for public comment? Okay. Great. Then we'll
open it up for public comment. Thank you, Kenny.

MR. WIRTH: Sure. First one I have is Dr. Jain
with Corewell.

MR. FALAHEE: Dr. Jain is becoming a familiar face
at these Commission meetings whether he wants to or not.
Welcome back.

DR. SUBODH JAIN: Thank you. Thanks for having
me.

SUBODH JAIN, M.D.

DR. SUBODH JAIN: Good morning. Thank you,
Chairperson Falahee; thank you, Vice Chair Dr. McKenzie, and
members of this Commission. My name is Subodh Jain. I'm
here on behalf of Corewell Health. I'm the chief of
psychiatry and behavioral medicine there. And as the chair
of CON Psych Beds workgroup.

So since the December meeting I have been working
with stakeholders to revise the definition of medical

psychiatry unit to allow the flexibility for acute care
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hospitals to provide critical behavioral health services to
those in urgent need who could not be placed in a general
psychiatry bed.

So if you noticed since 2015 or 2016, the world
has completely changed since the pandemic for all health
care and especially for mental health care. So the
resources are leaner, workforce is scarce, and infectious
diseases are prevalent. So what that says is the difference
between a psychiatry bed and a med psych bed is not as black
and white. 1It's grayer. So I believe we're close to an
agreement around the definition as it relates to acute care
hospitals. However, to ensure that we provide this
flexibility while also protecting the original intent of med
psych special pool, we have discovered that we need to
revise more than simply the definition. Maybe a setback of
this work is being recommended to workgroup form to look at
the med psych special pool in freestanding facilities. I'm
optimistic that we will be able to reach an agreement that
puts the health and well-being of Michigan children first.

The first meeting of the workgroup formed to
address the med psych definition in freestanding facilities
took place last week as Kenny mentioned and resulted in good
substantive discussion. Very open, very thorough
discussion. I really appreciate everybody who participated

there. All the solutions have not been discussed yet

19
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because we're still trying to -- like, kind of unsurface the
underlying issues with that definition itself. So I think
it was very well received. So we have not actually reached
the solutions and of course that's going to come -- have not
been discussed yet and we are poised to start those
discussions at our next meeting which is scheduled on
February 1l6th. It is likely that the solutions on
freestanding site will also require changes to more than
just the definition itself just like what we are mentioned.

So, again, my request is still let us continue on
the med psych and acute care hospitals. One of the angles
for -- not the angles. One of the things we notice is most
of the children who are even asymptomatic with respiratory
or COVID illnesses or lately we have the tripledemic of RSV,
influenza and COVID this fall, kids are stuck for wvery long
time -- and adults, too, but kids especially. So those are
the reasons why I think a med psych unit in acute care
hospitals may have a different flavor to than what it is in
the freestanding hospital. I'll be happy to answer any
questions.

MR. FALAHEE: Thanks, Dr. Jain. Questions?
Commissioner Ferguson?

DR. FERGUSON: Thank you. Thank you for the
presentation. Could you help me understand or perhaps the

Department can help me understand. Is this conversation

20
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principally about adults, children, both? Are the two
regulated separately or the same?

DR. SUBODH JAIN: They're about all age groups.
The reason why we see the crisis is primarily in -- not
primarily, but much worse in children.

DR. FERGUSON: Okay.

DR. SUBODH JAIN: So that's why we want to bring
this issue up because whatever we decide here is going to
impact the children's mental health in a long, long time.

DR. FERGUSON: Sure. So are they -- are they

regulated separately or managed the same from a licensure --

MR. WIRTH: For med psych beds --

DR. FERGUSON: For -- for -- yeah.

MR. WIRTH: -- and, Tulika, correct me if I'm
wrong, but I believe that med psych is just med psych;
correct? There are other child and adolescent med psych
beds?

MS. BHATTACHARYA: Yes. So the concept of the
special pool beds is the same, but we do have two separate
pool of beds, one for adults and one for child and
adolescent.

DR. FERGUSON: And this is looking to address
access in both arenas but I'm hearing you say that the

access problem is potentially worse with children?

DR. SUBODH JAIN: Worse with children. And one of

21
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the -- me being a representative of Corewell Health, we are
looking to start a pediatric med psych unit within this year
or by next year. So that's -- that is also trying to solve
some of the problems, so —--

MR. FALAHEE: Other questions from the
Commissioners? I've got a few. Just help me understand the
situation we're in. So when we talk about med psych beds --
and whether it's Dr. Jain, Tulika -- who can be admitted
into those beds now? Adults and kids? No kids? How does
that work?

DR. SUBODH JAIN: Anybody can be admitted to those
beds if they meet the criteria of. The challenge is the

language defines whether it is for somebody who needs acute

treatment for wound care, dialysis. I think there are a
couple more, intravenous tubing, IV lines. I think that's
what the definition said earlier. So it's fairly narrow in

scope and, but that we know, like, medical conditions are
way beyond that. So secondly the issue is if for some of
the med psych pool beds, if there is a unit open it does not
allow to admit somebody who does not have medical issues
acutely. So there should be a distribution that some of the
more complex psychiatry patients who cannot be placed
anywhere else can also be placed in some of those beds Jjust
for the need of acute care hospitals. Because I can imagine

no acute care hospital is looking to open more psychiatry
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only beds with med psych units. They're just trying to make
sense of whatever crisis is at their hands.

MR. FALAHEE: So this is Falahee again. So we've
got a situation now unlike maybe in '1l5 or maybe it's more
well recognized than it was in 'l5. We've got patients
coming in to emergency departments and having no place to
go. If it's a truly psych only patient, they sit in the
emergency department waiting for a psych admit somewhere.

If it's a child or adolescent that has medical and psych
issues, as I understand it now, they've got to have certain
medical issues before they can be admitted to a med psych
unit in that hospital or another hospital; is that right?

DR. SUBODH JAIN: That's correct.

MR. FALAHEE: Okay. And, Tulika, that is your
understanding as well?

MS. BHATTACHARYA: Yes.

MR. FALAHEE: Okay. All right. So one thought is
to expand the definition of med as part of the med psych
unit and the other issue is what can be done in freestanding
facilities vis-a-vis med psych or psych; right?

DR. SUBODH JAIN: Yes. That's correct.

MR. FALAHEE: Okay. All right.

DR. MACALLISTER: Just for clarification. And the
acuity level as well of that patient in that freestanding,

is that as well what you're trying to define? So is it more

23



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

of a long-term psychiatric freestanding facility as opposed
to an acute, intubated patient or is that -- is that also
part of the definition you're trying to define?

DR. SUBODH JAIN: So I hope I'm understanding you
correctly. Your question is, is the acuity level of the
patients defined in the freestanding hospitals before
they're admitted to those beds?

DR. MACALLISTER: Correct; yes.

DR. SUBODH JAIN: I don't think acuity is part of
it. It's specifically the medical services that they're
needing for it. And I think if the patient is acute enough,
they can't be in the freestanding hospitals.

DR. MACALLISTER: Right. That's why I'm —--

DR. SUBODH JAIN: So we do not want to put those
patients -- so we are -- like acute care hospitals should be
able to take care of all of those patients who are needing
to be hospitalized. I think these are the complex medical
patients. For example, somebody who has very brittle
seizure disorders or, you know, excessive needs in diabetes
or have a wound care after they cut themselves but they
can't be hospitalized overnight so they do not qualify for
inpatient hospitalization, but their psychiatry needs are
which can be met on the --

DR. MACALLISTER: On the outpatient and on --

DR. SUBODH JAIN: -- on the outpatient basis but

24
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then they would not be able to take care -- like regular
psychiatry unit do not have -- are not equipped to take care
of those patients.

DR. MACALLISTER: Correct.

DR. SUBODH JAIN: So the med psychs units should
be.

DR. MACALLISTER: And that's where I'm wondering
with the acuity level if that might be the issue that
conflicting with LARA in regards to some of the requirements
by code to accommodate patients that are intubated and the
like, if that would be part of the conflict. I'm not quite
sure within LARA.

MR. WIRTH: I think the conflict is that these
patients are needing to receive some treatments at the
freestanding if I'm understanding correctly, but right now
they aren't able to provide those treatments in a non-acute
care hospital.

DR. MACALLISTER: Right. And that's where I'm
thinking it's acuity level, but I'm not sure. So that,
again, but it would be helpful to understand where the
discrepancies are between those two. So thank you.

MS. GUIDO-ALLEN: Commissioner Guido-Allen. I
think the acuity level is somewhat, but if a patient is
adult or pediatric -- and correct me if I'm wrong -- if they

require intensive care, a freestanding --



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

DR.

MS.

the picture.

DR.

DR.

MS.

MACALLISTER:

GUIDO-ALLEN:

MACALLISTER:

SUBODH JAIN:

GUIDO-ALLEN:

26

You can't do that. Right.

-— that would never even be in

Right.
Uh-huh; absolutely.

And I think that at that point

the medical care would outweigh the psychiatric care.

DR.

MS.

some clarity

DR.

exactly what

MR.

education, Dr.

calendar.

DR.

me.

MR.

MR. KEN DEIGHTON:

MACALLISTER:

GUIDO-ALLEN:

Correct.

And I think that's what we need

around from the workgroup as well.

MACALLISTER:

Right. Yeah, I think that's

I'm thinking about, yeah.

FALAHEE:

Jain.

SUBODH JAIN:

WIRTH:

Other questions?

Thanks for your

Keep the March 16 date open on your

I think you'll be back here again.

Thank you. Thanks for having

Next we have Dr. Deighton of McLaren.

KEN DEIGHTON

am not a doctor.

MR.

MR. KEN DEIGHTON:

father's a doctor.

WIRTH:

Sorry.

Morning. I'm Ken Deighton. I

My brother's a doctor, my

I am the solution lead for behavioral

health for MclLaren Health Care and I serve as director of
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behavioral health services at McLaren Flint and McLaren
Lapeer Region hospitals and with over 30 years experience
working in Michigan hospitals with people requiring
psychiatric treatment, I'm well aware of the daily
challenges of access to services. And on behalf of McLaren,
I participated in a number of the psychiatric services
workgroups put forth by the CON Commission including the
workgroup that brought about the recommendations for the
special population beds and I appreciate the opportunity to
address you today.

You should have in front of you a letter from
McLaren's Chief Medical Officer, Justin Klamarus, on the
issue of child and adolescent psych beds and I'll be
speaking to his request today.

The CON Commission and the Department have been
very thoughtful in their approach to addressing unmet needs
for the provision of psychiatric services. This has been
confirmed by this discussion this morning and on an ongoing
commitment to making special population pool beds available
and to forming these workgroups to address issues that have
been raised by the provider community. However, the bed
need methodology is not designed to nimbly address a
paradigm shift in the provision of psychiatric services
toward a continuum of care that includes more than just

special population beds. Our state has reached a point of
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dire need for access to general children inpatient beds
across county lines, particularly in urban centers. To give
you an example, Jjust this month I shared a story of a
9-year-old child with severe psychiatric illness was brought
to McLaren Oakland Emergency Department in Pontiac on
January 3rd after an incident in her foster care facility
and her outpatient psychiatrist recommended inpatient
hospitalization. On January 9th, the hospital leadership
staff contacted me at Flint begging for help. Is there
something I can do? This prompted calls from me to my
friends around the state and to the leadership staff at the
community mental health services provider responsible for
the authorization in service what can be done to get this
child to an appropriate setting and was it appropriate to
have her in an alternate setting? Despite numerous attempts
to get her more appropriate setting than the ER, she was not
admitted to an inpatient psych unit until January 17th. A
two-week stay in the emergency department for a 9-year-old
is simply not acceptable. Unfortunately, this is one of the
many similar stories that exist.

Families, communities, hospitals are struggling
with the safety concerns for kids that need help, and
increased access to appropriate psychiatric beds through
this proposal is a step in the right direction toward

getting children out of the EDs and into proper psychiatric

28
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care.

We recognize this is a multi-layer issue and there
are many components that work together to address the needs.
As such, we want to be part of the solution at every level
starting with access. We'd like to work with the Commission
and Department to l1lift the regulations on child and
adolescent beds for a temporary period to allow providers to
bring the necessary beds online. This temporary period
would be mentioned -- and I appreciate my time is up here --
but I'm happy -- appreciate your consideration of this
request and happy to answer any questions that you may have.

MR. FALAHEE: Questions from the Commission?

Okay. I'll go. I talked to the folks at McLaren a number
of times and as I understand the proposal -- tell me where
I'm wrong. So to address the 9-year-old, what you're
proposing is doing away with current language in the
standards; right?

MR. 